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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Kilbourn Public Library was constructed in 1912 and has remained 
essentially unaltered since then. The alterations that have taken 
place, however, are ones that do not destroy the architectural excellence 
or significance of the building.

The general form of the building is a simple rectangle, with the first 
floor raised about four feet from the grade, covered by a gabled roof 
with generouse overhangs, and a projecting pavilion for the entrance 
lobby. The building sits on a rough stone base extending up to a cut 
stone watertable at about the first floor level. The stone masonry 
joints are neatly beaded indicating a high level of finish for this 
type of work.

The wall planes are of a rough surface stucco to a level below the 
wood sill of the high gable end windows. Windows on the front 
elevation (facing approximately south) extend to within two feet of 
the floor. All of the windows are wood, and stained a very deep 
opaque brovTn color, similar to all of the other woodwork on the 
exterior, except for the sash unit itself which is painted white.

The roof soffit is constructed of V-joint wood boards and is supported 
on sawn decorative brackets. The gable ends, over high windows, are 
of similar materials and a supporting bracket is located between the 
sash units which develops into a vertical mullion between each sash. 
The present roof material is an asphalt shingle and represents the 
only exterior change visable. The original roofing material apparently 
was wood shingles.

The interior is similarly almost unchanged. The original incandescent 
fixtures have been removed and replaced with fluorescent fixtures, a 
concession to improved, lighting levels and lower energy consumption. 
A discreet acoustical tile has been placed on the ceiling, and does 
not detract from what originally was a plaster ceiling. Wood library 
shelving, circulation desk and clock are a natural finish oak, all 
original.
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE *. r

The Kilbourn Public Library in Wisconsin Dells (formerly Kilbourn) 
is an excellent example of the small Carnegie library constructed in 
Wisconsin and possesses considerable architectural merit at a local 
level. The building was constructed in 1912 and dedicated in March 
of 1913. It was one of a number of such libraries in Wisconsin 
designed by the Madison architectural firm of Claude (Louis W.) and 
Starck (Edward F.).

The style of the building is Prairie School, yet its severe compact 
lines have been sensitively softened by the introduction of details 
that reflect a sympathy for the Arts and Crafts movement.

The firm of Claude and Starck is an important one both in the archi­ 
tectural history of the City of Madison, where their office was 
located, and in the expansion of the library construction program, 
financed in a large measure by the Carnegie Foundation. Claude and 
Starck developed a simple, compact and attractive scheme that appealed 
to the Library Commissions. They received many architectural com­ 
missions for libraries throughout Wisconsin and to a lesser degree 
in neighboring states.

Mr. Claude developed a reputation in this field and he spoke before 
some Library Clubs and produced a pamphlet on the subject. A 
surprising variety exists in their palette, with many in the Prairie 
style. The Kilbourn Public Library appears to be a one-of-a-kind 
in the exterior form, although its plan is similar to many of these 
small libraries.

The style is not unlike the William Collins House in Madison, by 
Claude and Starck, and its fine proportions and careful detailing 
indicates that the firm was comfortable in its execution of designs 
of this nature — a less severe form of the Prairie School.



On Claude and Starck:
Madison Past and Present, 1852-1902 published by the Wisconsin State 
Journal. Obituaries of August 11, 1951 in the Capital Times and 
Wisconsin State Journal for Louis W. Claude, and of October 28, 1947 
in the Capital Times for Edward F. Starck.

A Suggestion To State Library Commissions published privately by Claude and
Starck, Architects, in 1908. 

A Book of Carnegie Libraries, by T. W. Koch, H. W. Wilson Co., New York,
1917. Chap. XIII on Wisconsin and the Middle West.
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Gordon D. Orr, Jr., A. I. A., Architect O
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ORGAN! ZATION

Wisconsin Chapter, The American Institute of Architects Sept. 30, 1974
STREET AND NUMBER:

2729 Mason Street
CITY OR TOWN:

Madison
TATE

Wisconsin 53705
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